
1 

APPROVED MINUTES 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
CITY OF WYOMING, MINNESOTA 

AUGUST 14, 2018 
8:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER: 

Planning Commission Chairman Lobermeier called the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming Planning 
Commission of August 14, 2018 to order at 8:00 P.M. 

CALL OF ROLL: 

On a Call of the Roll the following members of the Wyoming Planning Commission were present: 
Mark Lobermeier, Judy Coughlin, and Dennis Schilling. 

Members Absent: None. 

Also Present: Council Liaison Lisa Iverson and Zoning Administrator Fred Weck. 

DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM: 

Chairman Lobermeier determined a quorum was present. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

OPEN FORUM: 

“An opportunity for members of the public to address the Planning Commission on items not on the 
current Agenda.  Items requiring Planning Commission action maybe deferred to staff for research 
and future Planning Commission Agendas if appropriate.” 

No members of the public spoke. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. Consider approving the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Wyoming, Minnesota 
Planning Commission for June 12, 2018. 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO APPROVE THE “REGULAR MEETING” 
MINUTES OF THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR JUNE 12, 2018, AS 
SUBMITTED. 

Voting Aye: Coughlin, Schilling, and Lobermeier. 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain: None 

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARINGS: NONE 

NEW BUSINESS: 

3. D-18-003:    Maranatha Assembly of God Church (Dave Morley) 

      24799 Forest Boulevard 

 Property ID Number   21.10638.10 

 
Zoning Administrator Weck explained that the Joint Park Planning Board (JPPB) met on July 24, 
2018 to discuss this item.  He explained that it is really more of a ghost plat and the JPPB decided 
to look at park dedication for the one lot being planned for now and consider the remaining lots at a 



2 

later time when there is an actual sketch plan.  He explained that a subdivision will be needed in 
order to separate this lot from the church parcel.     
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that under the Roads and Traffic portion of the report, it states that a 
cul-de-sac would extended from the proposed extension of Hamlet Avenue.  She asked if that was a 
mistake. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck confirmed that this had accidentally been left over from the report on 
Cherry Hill, so it was incorrect.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked for specifics on whether this was a group home and whether the 
residents would be “under treatment”. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that under State rules, living there is defined as “treatment” and 
not necessarily what the Commission may think of as typical treatment.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if the facility would be licensed by the State. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck confirmed that it would be licensed.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked how many people would reside in the home and whether there would 
be live-in staff. 
 
Mr. Morley stated that they plan to apply for eight residents.  He explained that it is a typical two-story 
home with a two-car garage.  He noted that there will not be live-in staff, but it will be fully staffed in 
shifts.     
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the right-of-way appears to be drawn at 50 feet and he thought the City 
required 60 feet.  He asked the applicant to continue working with staff on these types of details to 
ensure they are meeting the City codes.  He confirmed that the plan is to just plat the one lot at this 
point and not the whole parcel.  
 
Council Liaison Iverson confirmed that this lot would be well and septic and not City water. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
4. Ordinance Review   Shoreland District 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he had made the revisions suggested at the last meeting.  He 
stated that he has been swamped and has not had a chance to compare it to the PUD and 
Subdivision ordinance.  He would also like to take a closer look at the preliminary plat design for 
Guidance Homes and see if would cause any changes. He reviewed a map of Comfort Lake and 
noted the shoreland violations.  He explained that he had also made notations on the map of the 
attendees for the Planning Commission meetings to discuss the Shoreland Ordinance, as well as 
members of the Comfort Lake Association.  He explained the shoreland violation at the southern end 
of Comfort Lake where the property owner was issued a grading permit in 2011 to put in a sand 
blanket and he did much more than that.  He presented pictures of some of the violations.  He gave 
an overview of the violation on the far north end of Comfort Lake with regard to the vegetation 
requirements.   He reviewed the violation at the Gilbert property where all the vegetation had been 
stripped and the silt fence is below the ordinary water line.  There was approximately 13,000 sq. ft. 
impacted with this shoreland violation.  In all these cases, the violations weren’t reported until well 
after the fact and nothing could be done to stop them.  He explained that the reasons he brought this 
up is that the City and the watershed do not live on the lake and don’t see the violations when they 



3 

are happening.  He asked that when people on the lake see something that they call City staff when 
it happens and not months later.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked about the consequences for these violations. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that for some of these cases, the DNR has issued a restoration 
order.   
 
Council Liaison Iverson confirmed that Zoning Administrator Weck is encouraging residents of 
Comfort Lake to call when they see something going on just to make sure there is a permit and it is 
the allowable activity.   
 
Chair Lobermeier suggested reviewing the Shoreland Ordinance and just to review the sections that 
still need attention.   
 
Section 40-310 - Complete 
Section 40-311 - Complete 
Section 40-312 - Complete 
Section 40-313 – Complete 
Section 40-314 – Complete  
Section 40-315 – Complete 
Section 40-319 – Complete 
Section 40-320 – Complete 
Section 40-323 – Complete 
Section 40-324 - Complete 
Section 40-325 – Complete 
Section 40-326 – Complete 
Section 40-327 – Complete 
Section 40-328 – Complete 
Section 40-329 – Complete 
Section 40-331 – Complete 
Section 40-332 – Complete 
Section 40-333 – Complete 
Section 40-334 – Complete 
Section 40-335 – Complete 
Section 40-336 – Complete 
 
Chair Lobermeier noted that the discussion of 40-316 will need to wait for the subdivision ordinance 
to be reviewed.   
  
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that the Commission had considered taking out Section 40-317, 
however he believes that the DNR may not allow the City to remove this section.   
 
Section 40-317 – Complete. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that Section 40-318 has controlled access. She suggested coming 
back to discuss it in more detail. 
 
Chair Lobermeier asked if the City had gotten clarification from the DNR on the questions the 
Commission had on Section 40-321, item 2(i). 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he not gotten in touch with them because the last time he 
spoke with them he was told that the City should just submit the whole ordinance at one time and 
then they would give their feedback.   



4 

 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he is comfortable moving forward with that item as it is.   
 
Commissioners Schilling and Coughlin stated that they were also fine with the language. 
 
Section 40-321 – Complete 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that the question about invasive species for Section 40-322 was 
added onto item (1).2(v). 
 
Section 40-322 – Complete 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that for Section 40-330 she thought the Commission was going to 
wait until there was a decision regarding controlled access.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he is comfortable with the existing language, if the rest of the 
Commission was.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin and Schilling stated that they were fine with the existing language. 
 
Section 40-330 - Complete  
 
George Osgood asked if the measurement in Section 40-330 would just be for new construction. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would also apply to existing structures. 
 
Mr. Osgood stated that will be problematic on his side of the lake because his dock is the shortest 
and his is probably 56 feet long.   
 
Chair Lobermeier noted that this is the original language and wasn’t something that the Commission 
had revised, so these rules have been around for awhile already.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that he has never heard a complaint about the length of someone’s 
dock.   
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that there are only two sections that still need to be discussed and asked if 
the Commission would like to wait until Zoning Administrator Weck has time to dig into the subdivision 
ordinance, or try to tackle them tonight.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she understands the Commission won’t be able to finish this up 
tonight, but would like to have a little discussion on some of the items.   She asked Zoning 
Administrator Weck to explain the charts he put together on controlled access lots that relate to 
Section 40-318.   
 
Chair Lobermeier explained that there were actually only a few lines that the Commission needed to 
be concerned with and noted that because of the 67.3 ratio of Comfort Lake, a 25% increase was 
currently required.  He reviewed the information on the first page of the table and reviewed the 
numbers that applied to a 25% increase.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin asked if the decision could be to increase the percentage amount or just say 
“here is how much you can have”.  She stated that she feels the calculations that allow 18 slips is 
too many. 
 
Commissioner Schilling stated that he supports just setting a specific number. 



5 

 
Chair Lobermeier stated that he would also like to take out the percentage language and try to settle 
on a fixed number.   
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that it would be simple if the Commission was only considering 
the Gilbert lot.   
 
The Commission discussed some other possible percentage changes and what it would mean to the 
different number of allowed slips.   
 
Council Liaison Iverson confirmed that the City only has Heims Lake and Comfort Lake.  She asked 
if there was any reason the City couldn’t limit controlled access based on acreage of the lake.  
 
Commissioner Coughlin noted that there could be controlled access lots along a river, such as 
Sunrise.   
 
Councilmember Liaison Iverson suggested excluding rivers. 
 
Chair Lobermeier stated that the Commission has tried to follow what is included in the model 
ordinance and tried to balance the rights of the property owners to develop, protect the residents that 
are already there, and to protect the lake.   
 
Mr. Osgood stated that Zoning Administrator Weck had showed the existing violations which included 
the Gilbert lot already in violation.  He expressed his concern about who would be controlling this lot 
once the Commission comes up with their magic number of allowed slips.  He stated that people 
have more to do than police their neighbors on the lake and check on what they are doing.  He stated 
that he is assuming that everyone who saw some of these things happening just assumed that the 
property owners had gotten the correct permits.  He stated that he is very angry about the Gilbert 
property doing all the damage they have done without a permit.  He stated that his suggestion is to 
simply eliminate controlled access lots completely. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck clarified that the person who violated the lot was not aware and had not 
been to the meetings where this lot and the Shoreland Ordinance had been discussed.   
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she feels that beyond 6 slips the percentage amount needs to 
be increased drastically or it is simply limited to 6 slips for “x” amount of lake shore frontage.   
 
Chair Lobermeier asked the Commission to spend time thinking before the next meeting about 
eliminating controlled access or putting in a restriction of perhaps 50%. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she also had questions about launching, loading and storage.  
She noted that she had taken a look at Washington County because they just put together a new 
shoreland ordinance.  She read aloud the language used and noted that the word purchasers was 
changed to owners.  She noted that they also stated that a development agreement would be entered 
into between the developer and Washington County that specifies which lots and owners have 
authority to use the access and what activities are allowed. She read aloud the activities allowed 
such as sunbathing, swimming and picnicking, that were in the model ordinance and the Commission 
had chosen to take out.  She suggested that perhaps those should be put back into our Shoreland 
Ordinance.    She stated that one thing they added that she liked was a requirement that construction 
of structures on these lots, other than docking facilities, is prohibited.  She stated that they also added 
that any individual riparian lots which do not contain a seasonal or permanent home is allowed one 
dock with the capacity to accommodate up to three watercraft.  She read aloud additional language 
from this portion of the Washington County ordinance.  She stated that she believes this addresses 
who will police the lake.  



6 

  
Amanda Osgood Jimenez, stated that there is no stopping someone from docking their boat at the 
DNR access point.   She doesn’t understand who would go and tell those people that they cannot be 
there.     
 
Zoning Administrator Weck asked what she would do if someone came from the DNR slip and then 
parked on her dock. 
 
Ms. Jimenez stated that she would call the police because that is a private dock. 
 
Zoning Administrator Weck stated that this is also a private dock that is owned .by more than one 
person. 
 
Brian Murdock stated that for larger docks the DNR requires an EAW. 
 
Commissioner Coughlin stated that she will send the Washington County ordinance to Zoning 
Administrator Weck to distribute to the Commission for review before the next meeting. 
 

COMMUNICATIONS:   

Chair Lobermeier expressed his disappointment that the Planning Commission openings weren’t 
advertised in the newsletter.  He suggested that the existing Commissioners start asking around and 
invite people to come to a future meeting to see if they may be interested. 

UPDATES:   

Zoning Administrator Weck noted that for the next meeting the Commission will discuss the sketch 
plan for the Gilbert property and the Shoreland Ordinance.  He noted that he will be on vacation 
during the September 28, 2018 meeting.   

A MOTION WAS MADE BY PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER SCHILLING, SECONDED BY 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBER COUGHLIN, TO ADJOURN THE REGULAR MEETING OF 
THE WYOMING, MINNESOTA PLANNING COMMISSION FOR AUGUST 14, 2018 AT 9:00 P.M. 

Voting Aye: Coughlin, Lobermeier, and Schilling. 
Voting Nay: None 
Abstain: None 


